

CHAPTER 234

HUMAN SERVICES - INSTITUTIONS

HOUSE BILL 99-1223

BY REPRESENTATIVES Lawrence, Bacon, Coleman, Leyba, Mace, Plant, Spence, Tochtrop, and Tupa;
also SENATORS Wham, Musgrave, and Powers.

AN ACT

CONCERNING THE EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONS IN POSITIONS INVOLVING DIRECT CONTACT WITH
VULNERABLE PERSONS, AND MAKING AN APPROPRIATION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Colorado:

SECTION 1. 27-1-110, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

27-1-110. Employment of personnel - screening of applicants - disqualifications from employment. (1) The general assembly hereby recognizes that many of the individuals receiving services FROM PERSONS EMPLOYED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT pursuant to this title OR TITLE 26, C.R.S., are unable to defend themselves and are therefore vulnerable to abuse or assault. It is the intent of the general assembly to minimize the potential for hiring AND EMPLOYING persons with a propensity toward abuse, assault, or similar offenses against others for positions ~~which~~ THAT would provide them with unsupervised access to ~~individuals receiving services pursuant to this title~~ VULNERABLE PERSONS. THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY HEREBY DECLARES THAT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 13 OF ARTICLE XII OF THE STATE CONSTITUTION, FOR PURPOSES OF TERMINATING EMPLOYEES IN THE STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM WHO ARE FINALLY CONVICTED OF CRIMINAL CONDUCT, OFFENSES INVOLVING MORAL TURPITUDE INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES SPECIFIED IN SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(1.5) FOR PURPOSES OF THIS SECTION, UNLESS THE CONTEXT OTHERWISE REQUIRES:

(a) "CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE" MEANS A PERSON WHO CONTRACTS WITH THE STATE DEPARTMENT AND WHO IS DESIGNATED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT OR THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S DESIGNEE AS SERVING IN A CONTRACT POSITION INVOLVING DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS.

Capital letters indicate new material added to existing statutes; dashes through words indicate deletions from existing statutes and such material not part of act.

(b) "CONVICTION" MEANS A VERDICT OF GUILTY BY A JUDGE OR JURY OR A PLEA OF GUILTY OR NOLO CONTENDERE THAT IS ACCEPTED BY THE COURT OR ADJUDICATION FOR AN OFFENSE THAT WOULD CONSTITUTE A CRIMINAL OFFENSE IF COMMITTED BY AN ADULT. "CONVICTION" ALSO INCLUDES HAVING RECEIVED A DEFERRED JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE OR DEFERRED ADJUDICATION; EXCEPT THAT A PERSON SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN CONVICTED IF THE PERSON HAS SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETED A DEFERRED SENTENCE OR DEFERRED ADJUDICATION.

(c) "DIRECT CONTACT" MEANS PROVIDING FACE-TO-FACE CARE, TRAINING, SUPERVISION, COUNSELING, CONSULTATION, OR MEDICATION ASSISTANCE TO VULNERABLE PERSONS, REGARDLESS OF THE LEVEL OF SUPERVISION OF THE EMPLOYEE. "DIRECT CONTACT" MAY INCLUDE POSITIONS IN WHICH PERSONS HAVE ACCESS TO OR UNSUPERVISED TIME WITH CLIENTS OR PATIENTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO MAINTENANCE PERSONNEL, HOUSEKEEPING STAFF, KITCHEN STAFF, AND SECURITY PERSONNEL.

(d) "EMPLOYEE" MEANS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT WHO IS UNDER THE STATE PERSONNEL SYSTEM OF THE STATE OF COLORADO.

(e) "EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR" MEANS THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT.

(f) "STATE DEPARTMENT" MEANS THE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES.

(g) "VULNERABLE PERSON" MEANS ANY INDIVIDUAL SERVED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT WHO IS SUSCEPTIBLE TO ABUSE OR MISTREATMENT BECAUSE OF THE INDIVIDUAL'S CIRCUMSTANCES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE INDIVIDUAL'S AGE, DISABILITY, FRAILTY, MENTAL ILLNESS, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY, OR ILL HEALTH.

(1.7) THE EMPLOYMENT SCREENING AND DISQUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS IN THIS SECTION APPLY TO THE FOLLOWING FACILITIES OR PROGRAMS OPERATED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT:

(a) ANY FACILITY OPERATED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT FOR THE CARE AND TREATMENT OF THE MENTALLY ILL PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 10 OF THIS TITLE;

(b) ANY FACILITY OPERATED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT FOR THE CARE AND TREATMENT OF THE DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 10.5 OF THIS TITLE;

(c) VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION SERVICES PROVIDED PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 8 OF TITLE 26, C.R.S.;

(d) ANY DIRECT SERVICES IDENTIFIED AND PROVIDED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT IN WHICH EMPLOYEES HAVE DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS IN A STATE-OPERATED FACILITY OR IN A VULNERABLE PERSON'S HOME OR RESIDENCE;

(e) STATE AND VETERANS NURSING HOMES OPERATED PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 12 OF TITLE 26, C.R.S.;

(f) ANY FACILITY DIRECTLY OPERATED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT IN WHICH JUVENILES WHO ARE IN THE CUSTODY OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT RESIDE, INCLUDING DETENTION OR COMMITMENT CENTERS;

(g) ANY SECURE FACILITY CONTRACTED FOR BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 19-2-403, C.R.S., IN WHICH JUVENILES WHO ARE IN THE CUSTODY OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT RESIDE.

(2) Prior to the STATE department's PERMANENT employment of any person ~~in a state facility operated by the department and~~ in a position ~~which~~ THAT would require that person to have direct ~~and unsupervised~~ contact with any ~~individual receiving services pursuant to this title~~ VULNERABLE PERSON, the executive director or any division head of the STATE department ~~of human services may~~ SHALL MAKE AN INQUIRY TO THE DIRECTOR OF THE COLORADO BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION TO ASCERTAIN WHETHER SUCH PERSON HAS A CRIMINAL HISTORY. SUCH PERSON'S EMPLOYMENT SHALL BE CONDITIONAL UPON A SATISFACTORY CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK. ANY CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THIS SUBSECTION (2) SHALL INCLUDE BUT NEED NOT BE LIMITED TO ARRESTS, CONVICTION RECORDS, AND THE DISPOSITION OF ANY CRIMINAL CHARGES. THE STATE DEPARTMENT SHALL require said person to ~~submit~~ HAVE HIS OR HER FINGERPRINTS ~~to the department which shall be released~~ TAKEN BY A LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY. THE LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY SHALL FORWARD THOSE FINGERPRINTS to the Colorado bureau of investigation for the purpose of fingerprint processing utilizing the files and records of the Colorado bureau of investigation and the federal bureau of investigation. THE STATE DEPARTMENT SHALL PAY FOR THE COSTS OF CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION OUT OF EXISTING APPROPRIATIONS.

(3) The executive director or any division head ~~may~~ SHALL contact previous employers of any person ~~applying~~ WHO IS ONE OF THE TOP THREE FINALISTS for a position ~~which~~ THAT would require that person to have direct ~~and unsupervised~~ contact with any ~~individual receiving services pursuant to this title~~ VULNERABLE PERSON, for the purpose of obtaining information and recommendations ~~which~~ THAT may be relevant to such person's fitness for employment. Any previous employer of an applicant for employment who provides information to the executive director or a division head or who makes a recommendation concerning such person shall be immune from civil liability unless the information is false and the previous employer knows such information is false or acts with reckless disregard concerning the veracity of such information.

(4) Any local agency or provider of services pursuant to this title OR TITLE 26, C.R.S., may investigate applicants for employment ~~as set forth in this section~~.

(5) The executive director, any division head, or any local agency or provider who relies on information obtained pursuant to this section in making an employment decision or who concludes that the nature of any information disqualifies the person from employment AS EITHER AN EMPLOYEE OR A CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE shall be immune from civil liability for said decision or conclusion unless the information relied upon is false and the executive director, division head, or local agency or provider knows such information is false or acts with reckless disregard concerning the veracity of such information.

(6) The executive director may promulgate such rules ~~and regulations~~ as are necessary to implement the provisions of this section.

(7) (a) IF THE CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION (2) OR (9) OF THIS SECTION INDICATES THAT A PROSPECTIVE EMPLOYEE OR PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE WAS CONVICTED OF ANY OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF THIS SUBSECTION (7), SAID PERSON SHALL BE DISQUALIFIED FROM EMPLOYMENT EITHER AS AN EMPLOYEE OR AS A CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE IN A POSITION INVOLVING DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS. A PERSON WHO IS DISQUALIFIED AS A RESULT OF THIS SECTION SHALL NOT BE HIRED OR RETAINED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT IN A POSITION INVOLVING DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS NOR BE ELIGIBLE TO CONTRACT FOR OR CONTINUE IN A CONTRACT POSITION DESIGNATED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OR THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S DESIGNEE AS INVOLVING DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS.

(b) EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN PARAGRAPH (d) OF THIS SUBSECTION (7), A PERSON SHALL BE DISQUALIFIED FROM EMPLOYMENT EITHER AS AN EMPLOYEE OR AS A CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE REGARDLESS OF THE LENGTH OF TIME THAT MAY HAVE PASSED SINCE THE DISCHARGE OF THE SENTENCE IMPOSED FOR ANY OF THE FOLLOWING CRIMINAL OFFENSES:

(I) A CRIME OF VIOLENCE, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 16-11-309, C.R.S.;

(II) ANY FELONY OFFENSE INVOLVING UNLAWFUL SEXUAL BEHAVIOR, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 18-3-412.5, C.R.S.;

(III) ANY FELONY, THE UNDERLYING FACTUAL BASIS OF WHICH HAS BEEN FOUND BY THE COURT ON THE RECORD TO INCLUDE AN ACT OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 18-6-800.3, C.R.S.;

(IV) ANY FELONY OFFENSE OF CHILD ABUSE, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 18-6-401, C.R.S.;

(V) ANY FELONY OFFENSE IN ANY OTHER STATE, THE ELEMENTS OF WHICH ARE SUBSTANTIALLY SIMILAR TO THE ELEMENTS OF ANY OF THE OFFENSES DESCRIBED IN SUBPARAGRAPH (I), (II), (III), OR (IV) OF THIS PARAGRAPH (b).

(c) EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN PARAGRAPH (d) OF THIS SUBSECTION (7), A PERSON SHALL BE DISQUALIFIED FROM EMPLOYMENT EITHER AS AN EMPLOYEE OR AS A CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE IF LESS THAN TEN YEARS HAVE PASSED SINCE THE PERSON WAS DISCHARGED FROM A SENTENCE IMPOSED FOR CONVICTION OF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING CRIMINAL OFFENSES:

(I) THIRD DEGREE ASSAULT, AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 18-3-204, C.R.S.;

(II) ANY MISDEMEANOR, THE UNDERLYING FACTUAL BASIS OF WHICH HAS BEEN FOUND BY THE COURT ON THE RECORD TO INCLUDE AN ACT OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 18-6-800.3, C.R.S.;

(III) VIOLATION OF A RESTRAINING ORDER, AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 18-6-803.5,

C.R.S.;

(IV) ANY MISDEMEANOR OFFENSE OF CHILD ABUSE, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 18-6-401, C.R.S.;

(V) ANY MISDEMEANOR OFFENSE OF SEXUAL ASSAULT ON A CLIENT BY A PSYCHOTHERAPIST, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 18-3-405.5, C.R.S.;

(VI) ANY MISDEMEANOR OFFENSE IN ANY OTHER STATE, THE ELEMENTS OF WHICH ARE SUBSTANTIALLY SIMILAR TO THE ELEMENTS OF ANY OF THE OFFENSES DESCRIBED IN SUBPARAGRAPH (I), (II), (III), (IV), OR (V) OF THIS PARAGRAPH (c).

(d) IF A PERSON WAS ADJUDICATED A JUVENILE DELINQUENT FOR THE COMMISSION OF ANY DISQUALIFYING OFFENSE SET FORTH IN EITHER PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF THIS SUBSECTION (7) AND MORE THAN SEVEN YEARS HAVE ELAPSED SINCE THE COMMISSION OF THE OFFENSE, THE PERSON MAY SUBMIT A WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AS PROVIDED IN SUBSECTION (11) OF THIS SECTION FOR RECONSIDERATION OF THE DISQUALIFICATION.

(8) (a) ANY EMPLOYEE WHO IS EMPLOYED IN A POSITION INVOLVING DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS AND WHO IS ARRESTED, CHARGED WITH, OR ISSUED A SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT FOR ANY OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION SHALL INFORM HIS OR HER SUPERVISOR OF THE ARREST, CHARGES, OR ISSUANCE OF A SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT BEFORE RETURNING TO WORK. ANY EMPLOYEE WHO FAILS TO MAKE SUCH A REPORT OR DISCLOSURE MAY BE TERMINATED FROM EMPLOYMENT. THE STATE DEPARTMENT OR ANY FACILITY OPERATED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT SHALL ADVISE ITS EMPLOYEES AND CONTRACTING EMPLOYEES IN WRITING OF THE REQUIREMENT FOR SELF-REPORTING OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(b) AN EMPLOYEE WHO IS CHARGED WITH ANY OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH (b) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE SUSPENDED UNTIL RESOLUTION OF THE CRIMINAL CHARGES OR COMPLETION OF ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT. AN EMPLOYEE WHO IS CHARGED WITH ANY OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION MAY BE SUSPENDED AT THE DISCRETION OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT UNTIL RESOLUTION OF THE CRIMINAL CHARGES OR COMPLETION OF ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT. THE EMPLOYEE SHALL INFORM HIS OR HER SUPERVISOR OF THE DISPOSITION OF THE CRIMINAL CHARGES. ANY EMPLOYEE WHO FAILS TO REPORT SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE TERMINATED FROM EMPLOYMENT. UPON NOTIFICATION TO THE STATE DEPARTMENT THAT THE EMPLOYEE HAS RECEIVED A CONVICTION FOR ANY OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES DESCRIBED IN PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, THE EMPLOYEE SHALL BE TERMINATED FROM EMPLOYMENT. NOTHING IN THIS PARAGRAPH (b) SHALL PROHIBIT THE STATE DEPARTMENT FROM TAKING ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION IF THE EMPLOYEE'S CONDUCT WOULD JUSTIFY DISCIPLINARY ACTION UNDER SECTION 13 OF ARTICLE XII OF THE STATE CONSTITUTION FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH STANDARDS OF EFFICIENT SERVICE OR COMPETENCE OR FOR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, WILLFUL FAILURE, OR INABILITY TO PERFORM HIS OR HER DUTIES.

(9) THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY RECOGNIZES THAT THE STATE DEPARTMENT CONTRACTS WITH PERSONS TO SERVE IN POSITIONS THAT INVOLVE DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS IN STATE-OPERATED FACILITIES OR TO PROVIDE STATE-FUNDED SERVICES THAT INVOLVE DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS IN THE HOMES AND RESIDENCES OF SUCH VULNERABLE PERSONS. IN ORDER TO PROTECT VULNERABLE PERSONS WHO COME INTO CONTACT WITH THESE CONTRACTING EMPLOYEES, THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OR THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S DESIGNEE SHALL DESIGNATE THOSE CONTRACT POSITIONS THAT INVOLVE DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS THAT SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SUBSECTION (9). IN ANY CONTRACT INITIALLY ENTERED INTO OR RENEWED ON OR AFTER JULY 1, 1999, CONCERNING A CONTRACT POSITION THAT HAS BEEN DESIGNATED AS INVOLVING DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS, THE STATE DEPARTMENT SHALL INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

(a) THAT THE CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE SHALL SUBMIT TO A CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK AS DESCRIBED IN SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION FOR STATE EMPLOYEES;

(b) THAT THE CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE SHALL REPORT ANY ARRESTS, CHARGES, OR SUMMONSES FOR ANY OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES SPECIFIED IN PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION TO THE CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE'S SUPERVISOR AT THE STATE DEPARTMENT BEFORE RETURNING TO WORK;

(c) THAT THE CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE MAY BE SUSPENDED OR TERMINATED, AT THE DISCRETION OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT, PRIOR TO THE RESOLUTION OF THE CRIMINAL CHARGES FOR ANY OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES SPECIFIED IN PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION;

(d) THAT, UPON NOTIFICATION TO THE STATE DEPARTMENT THAT THE CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE HAS RECEIVED A CONVICTION FOR ANY OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES DESCRIBED IN PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, THE CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE'S POSITION WITH THE STATE DEPARTMENT SHALL BE TERMINATED.

(10) AN EMPLOYEE OR CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE WHO IS DISQUALIFIED DUE TO CONVICTION OF ANY OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSES SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION MAY SUBMIT A WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR RECONSIDERATION OF THE DISQUALIFICATION. RECONSIDERATION UNDER THIS SUBSECTION (10) MAY ONLY BE BASED ON A MISTAKE OF FACT SUCH AS AN ERROR IN THE IDENTITY OF THE PERSON FOR WHOM THE CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK WAS PERFORMED. IF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DETERMINES THAT THERE WAS A MISTAKE OF FACT INVOLVING THE IDENTITY OF THE PERSON, THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SHALL ISSUE A FINDING THAT THE DISQUALIFYING FACTOR IS NOT A BAR TO THE PERSON'S EMPLOYMENT EITHER AS AN EMPLOYEE OR AS A CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE.

(11) (a) AN EMPLOYEE OR CONTRACTING EMPLOYEE WHO IS DISQUALIFIED FOR CONVICTION OF AN OFFENSE SPECIFIED IN PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION MAY SUBMIT A WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR RECONSIDERATION OF THE DISQUALIFICATION AND A REVIEW OF WHETHER THE PERSON POSES A RISK OF HARM TO VULNERABLE PERSONS. IN REVIEWING A

DISQUALIFICATION, THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SHALL GIVE PREDOMINANT WEIGHT TO THE SAFETY OF VULNERABLE PERSONS OVER THE INTERESTS OF THE DISQUALIFIED PERSON. THE FINAL DETERMINATION SHALL BE BASED UPON A REVIEW OF:

(I) THE SERIOUSNESS OF THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSE;

(II) WHETHER THE PERSON HAS A CONVICTION FOR MORE THAN ONE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSE;

(III) THE VULNERABILITY OF THE VICTIM AT THE TIME THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSE WAS COMMITTED;

(IV) THE TIME ELAPSED WITHOUT A REPEAT OF THE SAME OR SIMILAR DISQUALIFYING OFFENSE;

(V) DOCUMENTATION OF SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF TRAINING OR REHABILITATION PERTINENT TO THE DISQUALIFYING OFFENSE;

(VI) ANY OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION SUBMITTED BY THE PERSON.

(b) THE DECISION OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SHALL CONSTITUTE FINAL AGENCY ACTION.

(12) NOTHING IN THIS SECTION SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO PRECLUDE THE STATE DEPARTMENT OR THE DIRECTOR OF ANY FACILITY OPERATED BY THE STATE DEPARTMENT FROM ADOPTING A POLICY REGARDING SELF-REPORTING OF ARRESTS, CHARGES, OR SUMMONSES OR A POLICY REGARDING DISQUALIFICATION FROM EMPLOYMENT THAT INCLUDES OTHER OFFENSES NOT SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH (b) OR (c) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

SECTION 2. 24-5-101, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

24-5-101. Effect of criminal conviction on employment rights. Except as otherwise provided by section 4 of article XII of the state constitution, and except for the certification and revocation of certification of peace officers as provided in section 24-31-305, AND EXCEPT FOR THE EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL IN POSITIONS INVOLVING DIRECT CONTACT WITH VULNERABLE PERSONS AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 27-1-110, C.R.S., the fact that a person has been convicted of a felony or other offense involving moral turpitude shall not, in and of itself, prevent ~~him~~ THE PERSON from applying for and obtaining public employment or from applying for and receiving a license, certification, permit, or registration required by the laws of this state to follow any business, occupation, or profession. Whenever any state or local agency is required to make a finding that an applicant for a license, certification, permit, or registration is a person of good moral character as a condition to the issuance thereof, the fact that such applicant has, at some time prior thereto, been convicted of a felony or other offense involving moral turpitude, and pertinent circumstances connected with such conviction, shall be given consideration in determining whether, in fact, the applicant is a person of good moral character at the time of the application. The intent of this section is to expand employment opportunities for persons who, notwithstanding that fact of conviction of an offense, have been rehabilitated and are ready to accept the responsibilities of a law-abiding

and productive member of society.

SECTION 3. 26-4-903, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SUBSECTION to read:

26-4-903. Pilot program - consumer-directed attendant support. (8) SECTION 12-38.1-117 (1) (b), C.R.S., AND SECTION 12-38.1-102 (5), C.R.S., SHALL NOT APPLY TO A PERSON WHO IS DIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY AN INDIVIDUAL PARTICIPATING IN THE PILOT PROGRAM PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION AND WHO IS ACTING WITHIN THE SCOPE AND COURSE OF SUCH EMPLOYMENT. HOWEVER, SUCH PERSON MAY NOT REPRESENT HIMSELF OR HERSELF TO THE PUBLIC AS A LICENSED NURSE OR A CERTIFIED NURSE AIDE. THIS EXCLUSION SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY PERSON WHO HAS HAD HIS OR HER LICENSE AS A NURSE OR CERTIFICATION AS A NURSE AIDE SUSPENDED OR REVOKED OR HIS OR HER APPLICATION FOR SUCH LICENSE OR CERTIFICATION DENIED.

SECTION 4. Appropriation. In addition to any other appropriation, there is hereby appropriated, to the department of public safety, Colorado bureau of investigation, for the crime information center, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1999, the sum of twenty-one thousand one hundred twelve dollars (\$21,112) and 0.1 FTE, or so much thereof as may be necessary, for the implementation of this act. Said sum shall be from cash funds exempt received from the department of human services.

SECTION 5. Effective date - applicability. This act shall take effect July 1, 1999, and sections 1 and 2 of this act shall apply to persons hired by or entering into new contracts with the department of human services on or after said date and shall apply to persons hired by or who have contracted with the department of human services prior to July 1, 1999, who commit disqualifying criminal offenses on or after said date.

SECTION 6. Safety clause. The general assembly hereby finds, determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety.

Approved: May 24, 1999